NPS Form 10-900 OMB No. 1024-0018

(Rev. 10-90)
United States Department of the Interior RECEl\/ED 2280
National Park Service odon

JAN 16 2009

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES

REGISTRATION FORM NAT. REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
This form is for use in nominating or requesting determinations for inblvi'd’Er’gp@cperteleel‘V\ ------

districts. See instructions in How to Complete the National Register of Historic Places
Registration Form (National Register Bulletin 16A). Complete each item by marking "x" in the
appropriate box or by entering the information requested. If any item does not apply to the
property being documented, enter "N/A" for "not applicable.”" For functions, architectural
classification, materials, and areas of significance, enter only categories and subcategories
from the instructions. Place additional entries and narrative items on continuation sheets (NPS
Form 10-900a). Use a typewriter, word processor, or computer, to complete all items.

1. Name of Property

historic name John Carney Agricultural Complex
other names/site number N-9390
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street & number 4300 Thompson Bridge Road not for publication ™

city or town Greenville, Brandywine Hundred vicinity X

state Delaware code county New Castle code 003 zip code 1980
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3. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the desighated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act of 1986, as amended, |
hereby certify that this x nomination __ request for determination of eligibility meets the
documentation standards for registering properties in the National Register of Historic Places
and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60. In my
opinion, the property x meets __ does not meet the National Register Criteria. | recommend
that this property be considered significant __ nationally

statewide locally. ( See continuation sheet for additional comments.)

Signatur'e of certifying Official Date

Delaware Division of Historical and Cultural Affairs
State or Federal agency and bureau

In my opinion, the property meets does not meet the National Register criteria.
See continuation sheet for additional comments.)
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2. Location
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state Delaware code DE county New Castle code 003 zip code 19807
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As the designhated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act of 1986, as amended, |
hereby certify that this x nomination request for determination of eligibility meets the

documentation standards for registering properties in the National Register of Historic Places and
meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60. In my opinion,

the property x meets does not meet the National Register Criteria. | recommend that this
property be considered significant nationally
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Signature of certifying official Date
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I, hereby certify that this property is:

entered in the National Register
See continuation sheet.
determined eligible for the

National Register

See continuation sheet.
determined not eligible for the

National Register

removed from the National Register

other (explain):

~gnature of Keeper Date of Action
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5. Classification

Ownership of Property (Check as many boxes as apply)

private
public-local
X public-state
public-Federal

Category of Property (Check only one box)

X building(s)
district
site
structure
object

Number of Resources within Property
Contributing Noncontributing

0

O OO O

buildings
sites
structures
objects
Total

Number of contributing resources previously listed in the National

Register _ 0

Name of related multiple property listing (Enter "N/A"
part of a multiple property listing.) N/A

iIf property is not
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Historic Functions (Enter categories from instructions)
Cat Domestic Sub: Single Dwelling
Agriculture Processing - Bank Barn
Agriculture Storage- Springhouse

Current Functions (Enter categories from instructions)
Cat: Domestic Sub: Single Dwelling

Landscape state park

7. Description
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Architectural Classification (Enter categories from instructions)
Late 19" to Early 20™ Colonial Revival

Materials (Enter categories from instructions)

foundation stone
roof asphalt shingle
walls wood

aluminum siding
other

Narrative Description (Describe the historic and current condition of the
property on one or more continuation sheets.)
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Physical Description

The John Carney Agricultural Complex is located on the north side of Thompson Bridge Road in
Brandywine Hundred, approximately one quarter mile east ofthe Brandywine River. The topography is
characteristic ofthe Piedmont Region in general; gently sloping to steep hills are dissected by minor streams
that drain into the Brandywine River. The Carney House and its agricultural outbuildings are situated at the
base of a steep hillside below a farm road and above a small spring in a flood pool at the head of Carney’s Run.
The bank bam provided ground level access from the yard area to the stables; while wagons entered the hay loft
from the farm lane behind the bam. Today, the property retains a sense of its historic setting and is maintained
as a residence for the Park staff at Brandywine Creek State Park.

The linear layout ofthe Carney Complex includes the frame dwelling built above a stone basement, a
stone springhouse, a stone and wood frame bank bam, and a series of stone retaining walls which have created a
terraced landscape behind and in front of the house. One stone wall forms the back ofthe bam and incorporates
two end walls ofthe attached wagon sheds. A second series of walls separates the house and springhouse from
the hillside on a 50 foot wide building terrace that rises four feet above the floodplain. The driveway extends
from the bam to the terrace at the back ofthe house. A third stone wall forms aterrace cut into the hillside just
below the farm road. This terrace was large enough to have supported an outbuilding. The farm road provided
access to neighboring farms and to the pastures above the hillside. The north boundary ofthe site conforms to
the top ofthe wooded hillside, about 200 feet behind the building layout. Altogether, there are seven
contributing elements on this site including the dwelling, 2 outbuildings, the farm road, and 3 series of stone
walls.

The original orientation ofthe farm complex was built to face north toward the farm road, with the
entrance to the house approached by a drive which extends from the bam to the back ofthe house. Today, the
front fa9ade has been re-oriented to face south where it overlooks a spring fed floodplain along Carney’s Run.
The raised drive over Carney’s Run begins at Thompson’s Bridge Readjust east of the house, extends north to
the bam, then turns west to pass behind the springhouse. The driveway joins a level terrace behind the house
and the stone retaining wall. A small sidewalk leads between the springhouse and the house to the front door,
while two doors off a sidewalk at the rear ofthe house provide the primary access.

Dwelling
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The Carney house is a vernacular farm dwelling that was built soon after acquisition ofthe property in
1874. This rectangular, wood frame dwelling has a gable roof with two levels in which a 214 story, 4-bay wide
main block joins a 2 story, 2 bay wing addition at the east gable end. While the main section was originally
constructed as a hall and parlor plan, the current floor plan consists ofan open living and dining room area with
a doorway to the kitchen through the east end wall. The second floor contains two bedrooms and a bath over
the living and dining room, and a third bedroom over the kitchen. A finished attic level with two dormer
windows is divided into two rooms above the main block. The main block retains a winder stair from the
basement to the attic level which is located on the north side ofthe east end wall. The wing addition is accessed
from the first and second floor through a center doorway next to the winder stair in the east end wall.

Exterior

The south facade retains a strong sense ofthe 19*" century plan which consisted ofa main block and a

kitchen wing added soon after the main section was completed.  Measuring 30.2 x 16.2 feet the main block
was built over a full basement. The basement walls are built of mortared fieldstone walls finished with stucco.
Four horizontal tripartite windows provide light and air to the cellar. A four foot wide opening at ground level
to the right of center in the east wall foundation allowed the extension of water and electric lines to the kitchen
wing. The four foot deep crawl space beneath the kitchen wing has a poured concrete floor and cinder block
walls finished with cement. A doorway in the southwest comer opens to a bulkhead entrance to the basement.

The four-bay south fa5ade is the principal front elevation with a door opening to the living room. A
shed-roofed porch, eight feet deep, rests on four wood posts and shields the first floor and the main entrance.
While the first floor has a four bay wide arrangement in which the door is in the second bay from left on the
front; the second floor has a three-bay window plan. All of the windows are six-over-six double hung sash
windows. The second story openings align with the right and left bay openings on the first floor, while the front
door and center window on the first floor are offset to the left and right of center.

The front door contains 12 window lights in the top 2/3 ofthe door panel. All 3 windows on the first
floor have paneled shutters, while on the second floor the windows have louvered shutters. The exterior walls
ofthe main block are covered with German wood siding while the interior walls are finished with plaster over
lathe. A pair of gable pedimented dormer windows with 6/6 lights pierce the asphalt shingled roof
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On the west elevation there is an exterior bulkhead entrance to the southwest comer ofthe basement.
From the ground level, a pair of metal doors open to the basement stairs between a stone bulkhead finished with
stucco. The bulkhead protects a set of wooden doors which have a window (1/1) opening in each half The
doors are made of hardwood panels milled with 2” bead on the interior and exterior sides. The hardware to the
door includes a thumb released locking plate on the exterior side which bolts into the wood sill under the first
floor. On the first floor a picture window is framed by two smaller double hung (4/4 lights) windows and set
within one pair of paneled shutters. The second floor has two six-over-six light double hung windows with
louvered shutters. The attic level has a set of center-hinged 2/2 casement windows that are located imder the
gable ridge.

At the rear elevation a small pediment shaped porch supported by two posts covers the formal entrance
to the dining room. This original entry to the house is centrally located with one window to the left and a 20*
century exterior fireplace placed in the bay to the right ofthe door. The fireplace is laid with finished brick and
mortar. The chimney stack is cut into the roof line flush with the eaves. A single belt course of brick one foot
below the top ofthe chimney marks the only decoration at the top. There are three window openings on the
second floor, two are smaller six-over-six double hung sash grouped to the left of center and the third window
aligns with the east bay on the first floor.

A 14’ X 17" two story, two bay kitchen wing obscures the first and second floor ofthe east elevation.
This wing has an asphalt shingled gable roofthat ties into the east end of the main block at the base oftwo
horizontal, tripartite casement attic windows. The exterior ofthe wing is covered with aluminum siding, while
the interior walls (except partition walls) are plaster. The north and south walls ofthe wing are inset one foot
from the main block. On the rear elevation a separate kitchen entrance, about 6 feet east of the main block, is
covered by a pediment shaped gable porch on two post supports which meet the driveway. A casement window
with a 6 light sash divided by wood muntins is located to the right of the door. There are two openings on the
second floor rear elevation; one is a six-over-six double hung sash, while the other opening is an eight-over-
eight double hung sash window. There is one opening in the east gable end on the first floor, a single six-over-
six double hung sash window with paneled shutters.

From the front elevation of the kitchen wing there are two window openings on the first floor and two
openings on the second floor. In the first bay ofthe kitchen a single wood surround frames a large opening with
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a fixed center 6-light sash, flanked by two casement windows ofthe same size. Paneled shutters frame the
wood surround. A single 6-light casement window is located to the right of center ofthe second bay. This
narrow window is balanced diagonally with the window to the right of the kitchen entry. The windows on the
second floor are both six-over-six light double-himg sash frames in wood surrounds with louvered shutters.

Interior

The 12-light wood paneled door in the front elevation opens into a full width 29’ X 15’ffont room,
encompassing the first floor of the main block. About two feet east ofthe front door, across the floor, there is a
trace of previous partition wall which once divided the hall and parlor rooms (1906 Probate). The flooring in
the main room is irregular 5 inch board wood running east and west. Centered on the north wall is a 12-light
wood paneled door which leads outside to a level patio below a 10 foot high stone retaining wall. Opposite the
first two bays ofthe main block on the north wall, there is a walled-in fireplace with an opening 2.8 feet wide, a
plain brick surround, and simple wood trim flush with the plaster wall. A decorative wood mantle is above the
fireplace surround. A metal fire-screen and a set of ceramic floor tiles protect a 2' X 4’ apron in front ofthe
hearth. On the west wall, the large picture window is now fixed in place, but once could be replaced with a
screen window to allow air circulation through the house in the summer.

In the northeast comer, along the east wall, there is a pair of two-over-two paneled interior wood doors
that open to the boxed-in winder stairs; the outer door leads upstairs and the inner door leads to the basement.
A wood banister curves around the outer wall, while a vertical pole lends support on the inside curve. Inthe
center ofthe east wall, adjacent to the stairwell, an interior paneled door opens to the kitchen area.

In the northwest comer ofthe kitchen area there is a half bath inside the exterior door on the north wall.
From this door to the northeast comer there is a 3 foot deep closet and pantry accessed by two paneled doors.
The interior partition walls are frame and drywall. A view through the kitchen to the springhouse opens fi'om the
window in the east wall. In the southeast comer there is a space larger than the present electric stove centered
under the single casement window. Wooden floor cabinets about 2’ deep extend from the stove to the
southwest comer of the kitchen. The Chicago-style window on the south wall is centered over the sink with a
view to the spring fed yard area below the house. A pair of built-in, double-door wooden cabinets 16” deep
frame the window to either side ofthe sink while a set of quarter round shelves are located in the comer next to
the stove. A 10” wide decorative soffit board with a scalloped edge placed on edge along the ceiling connects
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the two cabinets above the sink and extends to the comer above the stove. The kitchen hardware, cabinets and
window are typical of domestic design ofthe 1930°s to 1950’s.

There are three bedrooms and a bath on the second floor. A hallway about 3’X 20’ circulates from the
stairwell around a small center bedroom to the center bay window and the door to the west room. The west
bedroom measures 13" X 15’ with the addition oftwo closets along the length of the north wall. The space for
the original center bedroom was partitioned in halfto allow for the addition of a 5’'wide bathroom in the bay
along the south wall and space in the hallway for built-in closets. The present center bedroom is about 7° X 11’
with 2’ deep closets inset along the hallway. The flooring above the main block is 5” irregular board wood
mnning east and west. The hall also connects to the east bedroom over the kitchen. This bedroom is finished
with two 2’ deep closets to either side ofthe hallway door. The flooring in this room, beginning in the hallway
is laid with 2 Yz inch hardwood running east and west.

The stairway continues to the finished attic over the main block. The third floor has been altered to
include a bathroom and a study. Where the stairwell meets the attic, a small opening leads to a vented space
under the rafters ofthe wing addition. One endwall window lights the stairwell, while the other lights the
bathroom. The interior attic walls are finished with plaster.  All floors in the attic level have been covered
with 2 14” hardwood running north and south. A simple casement window opens through the west wall

Agricultural Outbuildings

The two outbuildings associated with this property are part ofthe original layout and constmction ofthe
stone walls. The bank bam was built with the rear wall as part of a stone retaining wall which extends to the
rear wall of a pair of one-story wagon sheds to either side the bank bam. Both sheds were enclosed by stone
walls at either end and each one shares a common wall with the bam. The west wagon shed was converted to
an attached garage and tool shed. The east wagon shed was removed so that only the stone walls and an outline
ofthe original roof line on the west end of the bam are visible. The upper level ofthe bam is sided with vertical
board and batten, while the lower level has been framed in with 4 windows, and a 6’ foot wide double-door.
The exterior ofthe lower level is covered with 12 inch width asphalt siding.

The bam represents the typical 19th century bank bam constmction ofthe Piedmont area in Delaware.
It is a gable roofed, rectangular, bi-level building with storage for hay and a threshing floor in the upper level
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and stables in the lower level. The bank bam is sited to provide access with a wagon to the upper level. The
upper level is entered by a ramp through a pair of large double-doors that are hung with rollers on a track under
the eaves. The bam is constmcted 3 bays wide and 3 bays deep of post and beams that transverse a floor

measuring 28 feet wide x 40 feet long. The upper level ofthe bam is intact to its original period of constmction,
while the lower level reflects the changes occurring during the early 20* century.

The conversion ofthe lower level from a small farm operation to 5 finished horse stalls and one tack
area is typical ofthe transformation ofthe mral countryside to larger estate holdings in northern Delaware. The
horse stalls have sliding wooden doors, himg from rollers on a track. The stalls on the west end of the bam
include horizontal 6-light sash windows placed high in the stone wall. The interior of each stall is sided with
10” wood boards at least 5 feet high. The stable floor is made of finished concrete and the rear walls are
finished wdth stucco. The wood stalls measure 9 * x 9’ and there is a wide center bay for tacking up the horses.

A raised driveway with a culvert allows vehicles and trailers access from the road to the bam.

The 1 14 story stone springhouse with a gable roofwas built about 2 feet below ground level, 8.5 feet
east ofthe kitchen. The spring house still provides miming water diverted through a pipe from the hillside into a
3’X 4 interior basin. It also provides a cold storage space over the summer. Its association with the building
terrace and stone retaining walls places its constmction with the original agricultural complex. It was designed
with a drain that runs out ofthe building, through the front terrace to the spring in the front yard. The water
level in the interior basin inside the spring house is controlled by raising the height ofthe drain pipe above the
incoming flow ofwater.  Measuring 12.2 x 20.2 feet, the building is banked into the ground. The stone walls
are 18 inches thick and they are pierced by 3 horizontal tripartite windows: two on the south side and one on the
north side, all set about 5" above the floor. One narrow window at the east gable end is a two-over-four double-
himg sash. A heavy wooden door Avith cast iron hinges and a one-over-one center window opens toward the
house.

Stone Walls and Farm Road

The stone retaining walls represent 3 sets of terraces that define the building space for the primary
dwelling, the bam and its shed additions, and a miscellaneous terrace that is situated below the farm road west
ofthe house. The first set of walls encompasses the bam and its shed additions. The second set ofwalls
encompasses the house and the spring house between a rear retaining wall and a raised front wall above the



NPS Form 10-900-a OMB No. 1024-0018
(8-86)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
CONTINUATION SHEET

Section Page
John Carney Agricultural Complex
name of property

New Castle County, Delaware
county and State

spring-fed yard. The third stone wall measures 36 feet long and encloses a level space about 12 X 36’ that is
located midway up the slope between the house and the farm lane. It may have formed a platform for a small
building such as a wood shed. The farm lane behind the house, bam, and terrace system is a remnant ofthe
agricultural landscape that once coimected the property to the farms along the Brandywine River and the hay
pastures ofthe upper meadows. Today it links the trails in Brandywine Creek State Park to Thompson Bridge
Road.

Though no prior archaeological testing was conducted at the John Carney Agricultural Complex, there is

a potential for archaeological site remains to be identified which relate to the assemblage of frame bams, sheds
and features that comprised the late 19* century Carney farmstead.
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8. Statement of Significance
Applicable National Register Criteria (Mark "x" in_one or more boxes for the
criteria qualifying the property for National Register listing)

Property is associated with events that have made a significant
contribution to the broad patterns of our history.

B Property is associated with the lives of persons significant in
our past.
Property embodies the distinctive characteristics of a type,
period, or method of construction or represents the work of a
master, or possesses high artistic values, or represents a
slgnl_ﬂcant and distinguishable entity whose components lack
individual distinction.

Property has yielded, or is likely to yield information important
in prehistory” or history.

Criteria Considerations (Mark "X" in all the boxes that apply.)
A owned by a religious institution or used for religious purposes.

removed from its original location,

a birthplace or a grave.

a cemetery.

a reconstructed building, object, or structure,

a commemorative property.

OO m m O O W

less than 50 years of age or achieved significance within the
past 50 years.

Areas of Significance (Enter categories from instructions)
Agriculture

Conservation

Period of Significance 1870-1910
1910 - Present
Significant Dates N/A

Significant Person (Complete if Criterion B is marked above) N/A
Cultural Affiliation N/A
Architect/Builder Unknown

Narrative Statement of Significance (Explain the significance of the property
on one or more continuation sheets.)
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Statement of Signifieance

The John Carney Agricultural Complex is eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic Places under

Criterion A, reflecting broad patterns of history from two different periods in Delaware’s piedmont region.
First, the Carney Agricultural Complex reflects subsistence agriculture at the end ofthe 19* century and second,

it reflects the development of the open space preservation movement in the 20* century. Built by John Carney

and his wife Mary after 1874, the linear complex ofhouse and outbuildings (some in ruins or demolished)
reflects the diversity of activities conducted by the family over the 30 years of its existence as a family farm in a
setting that includes steep hillsides as well as flatter terrain suitable for agricultural fields, pastures and gardens.
Following the death of John Carney’s widow, Mary, in 1906, the farm was purchased by William Poole
Bancroft, a Wilmington industrialist and philanthropist who was committed to public open space and affordable
housing. In 1912, the Carney farm, along with more than 1350 additional acres of land in Brandywine Hundred,
were transferred from Bancroft to the Woodlawn Company (how Woodlavm Trustees), which maintained this
large tract more or less intact as farm and forest land through the beginning ofthe 21 st century. During this
time, the Carney House and other farm houses owned by the corporation were first updated as tenant houses and
later modernized and converted to “country homes” that were rented out. The Carney Agricultural Complex,
along with 11.2 acres of land, was transferred to the Delaware Division of Parks and Recreation in 1997 and is
managed as part of Brandywine Creek State Park.

The John Carney Agricultural Complex and Farming in Delaware’s Piedmont Region

The John Carney Agricultural Complex is located on a tract of approximately 90 acres of land granted to
Nathaniel Kennedy by agents ofthe Pennsylvania Land Company (PLC) in 1759*. This tract was among the

smaller tracts granted by the PLC in this area. Kennedy left his land to his son, John, at an imdetermined date in
the late 18* century. John is listed in an 1816 tax assessment as owning 90 acres with a log dwelling.

After his death in 1826, John Kennedy left his land to his four children, John Jr., Rebecca (Gallat), Mary
(Nixon), and Elizabeth. This division of land into ever smaller tracts was characteristic ofthe early 19* century
in Delaware’s Piedmont region, and led to abandonment of unprofitable farms on the one hand and to more
intensive cultivation of more viable properties on the other. Each ofthe four Kennedy children received roughly
24 acres of land, too little to produce much ofa surplus, but probably sufficient to feed a household.™ Family

farms ofthis period in southern New Castle County were generally smaller than 200 acres and averaged about
100 acres.™ Ofthe four, only Elizabeth and Mary (with her husband, John Nixon) continued to live on the
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property they inherited. John, Jr. moved to Ohio and had sold his share by 1833. Rebecca retained ownership
of her share until 1865. Elizabeth inherited the log house built by her grandparents and lived there lontil her
death in 1869 John and Mary Nixon built a two-story stone bank house on Mary’s share, which they sold in
1853. Cornelius Sweeney purchased the John Kennedy, Jr. tract in 1842, and apparently built a small house
there. It must not have been very impressive, however, because in 1861 both Cornelius Sweeney and Rebecca
Gallat were assessed the same amount ($480) for 24 acres of land even though the assessors noted the presence
ofa “small house” on Sweeney’s land. In 1864 and 1865, both the Gallat tract and the Sweeney tract were
purchased by T. L. and A. P. Talley for $1100 and $1000 respectively, again suggesting that the Sweeney house
was of negligible value. The Talleys sold the combined tracts to William Wilson in 1870. Wilson then divided
the consolidated tract into two unequal tracts along the line ofa “New road to be laid out and opened from the
Brandywine Creek Eastwardly”*. Wilson incorporated the southern portion into his existing landholdings, while

John Carney purchased the larger tract (30 acres) on the north side ofthis new road in 1874 for $1570.

The Carney House and its associated agricultural buildings date from about 1874 when John Carney
purchased the land,” a third of which was listed in an 1893 tax assessment as “wood and rough™* and established
a small farm on the steep hillside that was probably sufficient to feed a family with an income from other
sources to meet cash expenses, but not large enough to be economically viable as the family’s sole source of
income. Despite the small size of their farm, John and Mary Carney continued to live there for more than 20
years, raising a family of seven children.

The inventory of John Carney’s estate focuses on the farm, rather than the house, and demonstrates the
subsistence level of agricultural activities. The household and kitchen goods are listed as a single entry, but the
farm-related entries are more detailed. The inventory indicates the presence of farm animals that were raised
primarily to provide food for the family, including one cow, two heifers, two pigs, and 65 chickens, though the
chickens probably also provided a source of cash income through the sale ofeggs and the occasional elderly
stewing chicken. The crops listed in the inventory also appear to have been used primarily for food for the
family, including com and wheat, which could be taken to a local grist mill to be exchanged for commeal and
flour, but also included fodder for the animals such as hay and com fodder (dried leaves from com stalks).
Farming implements used by the Carney family included two plows, two cultivators, and a double harrow.
Though only two horses are listed in the inventory (one a very expensive mare), the presence of several carts or
wagons of various types, including two horse-drawn wagons, a cart and a market Dearbum, suggests that Carney
may at one time have hired out his services as a carter to earn extra cash. * Overall, the impression is one ofa

self-sufficient subsistence farmer, rather than someone engaged in dairy farming or in fanning someone else’s
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land.

After the death of John’s wife, Mary Carney, ten years later, an appraisal of her estate provides
information on the house as well as the farm. Though there was no detailed list of household goods, the value
ofthese goods is listed room-by-room. This listing clearly indicates that the floor plan ofthe house has
remained substantially unchanged despite later alterations. The inventory of Mrs. Carney’s estate begins \vith
the garrett or attic in the main block of the house, proceeds through the west and center rooms ofthe main block
and into the east room over the kitchen, through a short hallway leading to the boxed staircase down to the first
floor. On the first floor, the appraisers began in the east room, moved to the west room, (both in the main
block) then went down into the cellar and back up to the kitchen. The inventory also lists outbuildings,
including a spring house, chicken house, slaughter house, wood house and wagon house. The only animals
listed are a horse and cow, though the contents of the chicken house are valued at $25.00, so this entry probably
includes a fairly large number of chickens. Crops listed include com (with the sheller), com fodder, straw, a
substantial quantity ofhay, and wheat.® It appears that during the ten years between the deaths of John Carney
and Mary Carney there was still some farming, at least animal husbandry, though possibly on a smaller scale
than when John was alive.

Despite the small size ofthe farm, the Carney Agricultural Complex reflects the diversity of activities
that were conducted on the farms of Delaware’s Piedmont region in the 19** century. Though courtyard plans'®
were perhaps more common for agricultural complexes in more open areas of the coimty, the tightly constrained
linear arrangement ofthe Carney complex hugging the edge ofthe hillside conserves both the fertile land in the
floodplain of Carney’s Run and the flatter arable land on the ridge top above the complex for cultivation and
pasturage. The bank bam and spring house were developed to support the dairy farming that became an
Important element of New Castle Coimty agriculture during the 19* century, and their presence in the Carney
complex suggests that dairying was one of the activities carried out by the Carneys. Even small farms like that
ofthe Carneys could keep a few cows to produce milk for making cream, butter and even cheese to sell at
market or for consumption by the family. The slaughter house listed in Mary Carney’s inventory makes it clear
that the Carneys were raising much oftheir own meat and processing it themselves. The chickens raised in the
chicken house could provide a small but steady income from selling eggs as well as providing food for the
Carneys. The Carneys clearly produced much ofthe fodder and bedding for their animals, as well as raising
wheat and com that could be sold or exchanged for flour and com meal at a local mill. It is likely that they also
raised vegetables and other produce in the fertile floodplain below the house, both for their own consumption
and for sale at market.
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In 1907, Mary Carney’s children sold the property to William Poole Bancroft for the sum of $3400

dollars, and this small farm became one ofthe first tracts in a large landholding that has become an important
element in open space preservation in Brandywine Himdred.”* In 1912, Bancroft transferred his personal

landholdings in Brandywine Hundred, including the Carney property, to the Woodlawn Company.** When the

Woodlawn Company changed their organization’s structure from a stock subscription to non-profit in 1919,
they became the Woodlawn Trustees, as the company is still known today. All properties owned by the
Woodlawn Company were transferred to the Woodlawn Trustees.  The Trustees retained ownership ofthe
Carney House until it was given to Brandywine Creek State Park in 1997 at no cost.

The Preservation of Open Space in the Brandywine Creek Area

Joseph Bancroft and Sons Company was a textile mill established on the banks ofthe Brandywine River
in 1831 by Joseph Bancroft. One ofJoseph’s sons, William Poole, started working at the mill as a child and
became a partner in the family business in 1865. William was greatly concerned with the condition ofthe
rapidly expanding city of Wilmington. He believed in “constructive city planning - specifically, for providing
public parks, parkways, and well planned residential developments.”  After helping to establish the

Wilmington park system by donating the land for Rockford Park, Bancroft formed the Woodlawn Company on
April 8,1901 for the purpose of buying land in Wilmington to build affordable housing for residents.*”

On February 15, 1912 at the Company Director’s annual meeting a letter written by Bancroft urged the
Broad to purchase the lands in Brandywine Hundred that he had purchased over the preceding years. Two
months later at a meeting on April 9, the Board adopted a resolution to buy the Brandywine Hundred lands that
Bancroft had purchased. A total of 1,392 acres was purchased for the sum of $148,000 and the issuing of 700
shares of stock.

The near 1,400 acres purchased by Bancroft and transferred to the Woodlawn Company were divided up
into 20 properties. The properties lay in the area to the west ofthe Wilmington and Great Valley Turnpike
above Talleyville (the present day Concord Pike) and on the eastern side of the Brandywine River. The

Woodlawn properties stretched from bordering on A.l. DuPont’s land in the south to lying on part ofthe
Pennsylvania line in the north.*’

The Carney property was one of Bancroft’s smaller holdings, consisting of only 24 acres, when it
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transfened from William Poole Bancroft to the Woodlawn Company in 1912. The surrounding tracts of
property were acquired by Bancroft between 1907 and 1911, with Carney’s land being acquired on April 12,
1907.

The original intention behind the purchase ofthe Brandywine Hxmdred lands by Bancroft was for the
eventual deeding ofthe land to the city of Wilmington for use as ‘"a boulevard or parkway a mile or two long
between different parks and the remainder of the land be laid out and disposed of as a residence district.””  The

only areas of land turned into residential districts are the present neighborhoods of Alapocas, Woodbrook,
Sharpley, Edenridge, and Tavistock."”?

The acquisition ofnearly 1,400 acres north of Wilmington meant a new phase for the Woodlawn
Company. Instead of constructing housing for city residents, the Company now had to maintain working tenant

farms. The organization hired agriculturalist Arthur Smedley as their Farm Lands Manger “to oversee the rental
and maintenance ofthe farm properties under the supervision of Charles Beck.”

The operation ofthe area’s tenant farms proved to be a costly proposition as the rental income did not

cover the expenses associated with the properties. Since most ofthe farmsteads and associated buildings were
in disrepair, money was spent to make them livable again.”V

Another source of money loss for Woodlawn proved to be their effort at running a dairy farm. By 1930
the losses reached such a height that the Trustees (they changed their name from the Woodlawn Company to the
Woodlawn Trustees in 1919) decided to end the operation. The increasing costs of running a dairy operation
and no increase in the income oftenant farmers resulted in many ofthe tenants to abandon farming. In an effort
to recoup these costs, the Trustees decided to modernize selected farmsteads and rent them out as “country
homes”™ The interior modifications to the Carney House indicate that this was one ofthe houses selected for

this process.

After initial work by an architect and a general contractor, it was decided that subsequent jobs would be

planned and carried out by the in-house Woodlawn staff. From 1935 to 1962, one modernization job a year was
undertaken. One ofthese jobs was work on the John Carney House on Thompson’s Bridge Road. M

Today, the John Carney Agricultural Complex serves as a staff residence for Brandywine Creek State
Park, part ofthe Delaware State Park system. The property is surrounded by lands owned by the Division of
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Parks and Recreation as well as tracts still owned by the Woodlawn Trustees. As part ofthe State Park system,
the complex preserves a sense ofthe small family farm established by the Carneys while contributing to the
commitment to public open space espoused by William Poole Bancroft and carried out by the Woodlawn
Trustees over the last century.

' The Pennsylvania Land Company was formed by a consortium of London investors that held land granted to them by William Penn
as a speculative investment.
A Amish farmers in nearby Lancaster County, Pennsylvania, using the technology that would have been available to the Carneys,
consider a farm of less than 50 acres unlikely to be profitable.
A K. W. Dohbs, "rural responsibilities”. Estate Farms in Northern New Castle County, Delaware and the Impact on Open Space
Planning into the 1990’s”. Manuscript on file, Delaware Division of Parks and Recreation.
"NCCRD Vol. 0-6, p.218. Ibid, p.47
NCCRD Vol. F-10, p. 253.
® NCCRD Vol. F-10, pp. 253-254.
” New Castle County Assessment Records, 1893-1897, East Brandywine Hundred, p. 581.
* New Castle County Probates and Wills, John Carney 1895-1896.
® NCC Probates and Wills, Mary Carney, 1906-1907.
Nivin Farm Draft National Register Nomination, Section 8, p.5.
" NCCRD Vol. L-21, p.205, Delaware Public Archives: Dover.
NCCRD Vol. S-23, p.435-457, Delaware Public Archives: Dover.
NCCRD Vol. N-28, p.1-67, Delaware Public Archives: Dover.
Woodlavm Trustees, Inc., “For the Future Wihnington,” 1974, PAM F173.68.W89, Historical Society of Delaware: Wilmington.
Theodore S. Beck, “The Story of Woodlawn,” 17 February 1971, pgs.1,5. Bill Frank Collection, Box 4, Folder 21, Historical
Society of Delaware: Wilmington.
Ibid, p.lI6.

NCCRD Vol. S-23, pgs.435-457.
* William Poole Bancroft letter as quoted by Beck, p.I5.

”” Beck, pgs.29,31,34, 36-37.
““Beck, p.I7.
Beck, p.20.
““Beck, p.21.
““ Beck, p.22.
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Maps
A uses map (7.5 or 15 minute series) indicating the property's location.
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Or numerous resources.

Photographs
Representative black and white photographs of the property.

Additional items (Check with the SHPO or FPO for any additional items)

Property Owner

(Complete this item at the request of the SHPO or FPO.)
name Delaware Department of Natural Resources and Environmental Control

street & number 89 Kings Highway telephone (302)739-9200

city or town Dover state DE zip code 19901

Paperwork Reduction Act Statement: This information is being collected for applications to the
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Reductions Project (1024-0018), Washington, DC 20503.
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John Camey Agricultural Complex
4300 Thompson Bridge Road
Greenville vicinity, New Castle Coimty, Delaware

Photographer: Mark Miller

Date: Jime 5, 2006

Location of Negative:
Description of Views:
Photo 1 of 16.
Photo 2 of 16.
Photo 3 of 16.
Photo 4 of 16.
Photo 5 of 16.
Photo 6 of 16.
Photo 7 of 16.
Photo 8 of 16
Photo 9 of 16.
PhotolOof 16
Photo 11 of 16.

Photo 12 of 16.

Delaware Department of Natural Resources and Environmental Control
(DNREC), Division of Parks and Recreation

View Northwest to Dwelling and Springhouse
View East to Dwelling and Bam from Farm Lane
View Southwest to Dwelling from Farm Lane
View East on Front Porch

View West across Living Room

View East to interior Kitchen

View East in Attic to Stairwell and Bath

View Northeast in Basement to Stairwell

View Southeast from Driveway to Springhouse Door
View Northwest to Water Basin inside Springhouse
View North to Bam and Attached Garage

View Northwest to Bam and Retaining Wall
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Photo 13 of 16. View Southeast from Interior Stable Area
Photo Hof 16. View West Inside Hay Loft to Timber Frame Endwall
Photo 15 of 16. View East Down Farm Lane

Photo 16 of 16 VView Southwest from Drive to Meadow in Front Yard
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State of Delaware
Historical and Cultural Affairs

21 The Green
Dover, DE 19901-361 !

Phone: (302) 736.7400 Fax: (302) 739.5660
RECESVED 2280
January 14,2009 JAN 16 2009

NAT. REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

Dr. Janet Snyder Matthews, Keeper
National Register of Historic Places
National Park Service 2280

1201 'T" (Eye) Street, N.W.
Washington D.C. 20005

Dear Dr. Matthews:

Enclosed please find the following nominations for listing on the National Register of Historic
Places:

John Carney Agricultural Complex, Greenville Vicinity, New Castle County, DE
Rosemont, 15 V* Cragmere Road, Brandywine Hundred, New Castle County, DE
Woman’s Christian Temperance Union Foimtain, Rehoboth Beach, Sussex County, DE

Ifthere are any questions regarding these documents, please contact Joan Larrivee, Architectural
Historian for the Delaware State Historic Preservation Office at (302) 736-7400.

Sincerely,

Stephen Marz, Deputy Director
Delaware Division of Historical and Cultural Affairs
and Deputy State Historic Preservation Officer
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